TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER FOUR: THEMATIC ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION	.2
4.1. Introduction	.2
4.2. Thematic Analysis	.2
4.2.1. Significance of Product Standardisation which leads to Innovation in the Automobile Sector	
4.2.2. Evaluation of Factors which underlies the Product Standardisation leading to Innovation in Jaguar	4
4.2.3. Challenges Faced by the Managers of Jaguar while Implementing Product Standardisation for Promoting Innovation	6
4.2.4. The Role of Product Standardization in Promoting Innovation in the Company	7
4.3. Discussion	.9
References	13
Appendices	18
Interview Questions	18

THE ROLE OF PRODUCT STANDARDIZATION IN INNOVATION - A CASE STUDY OF JAGUAR

CHAPTER FOUR: THEMATIC ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION

4.1. Introduction

This chapter is designed in order to present the interview results for the research which has been conducted by the researcher. The section has provided insights given by the interviewees who are the employees of Jaguar Company, where the interview was carried out in Shanghai, China. In addition to the interview results, the chapter has incorporated discussion on the achievement of objectives which determine how the research was completed by the researcher. The next heading discusses a detailed thematic analysis which is focused on the product standardisation and innovation measures implemented in Jaguar, Shanghai.

4.2. Thematic Analysis

4.2.1. Significance of Product Standardisation which leads to Innovation in the Automobile Sector

Of the 20 employees invited to participate in the study, all of the participants were interviewed which represents different roles within the respective domain in Jaguar and who have provided their valuable insights on the product standardisation which leads to innovation in the company. Among the 20 employees interviewed by the researcher, it was reflected on their statements that they all regarded product standardisation and innovation in the automobile industry as important which can lead to the success of the company. When

question regarding importance of product standardisation was being asked by the automobile manager, he stated that,

"I believe that product standardisation strategy particularly in the automobile companies is an overall belief identifying that the world is becoming more homogenous with the implication of communication and technology and since the preferences and tastes of the consumers are constantly changing according to the present trends in the vehicles which are the reason I personally think that every company should focus on standardising and yet sustain innovation."

In response to this statement, the 1st employee who was the assistant manager of the company provided his insights on the significance of product standardisation that,

"Considering the current globalised situation in the present business world, it is necessary that companies should focus on standardising their products rather than adopting because it eventually helps in sustaining competitive advantage. Companies can enhance their performance within the industry they are performing and I also believe that the challenges associated with the globalisation and innovation can easily be focused on by means of product standardisation in the automobile industry".

From this response, it was articulated that challenges pertaining to the globalisation in the business situation can be easily be unravelled and will help the company in meeting their objectives and attaining a sustainable competitive advantage. Moreover, the 4th employee of Jaguar who was the senior manager of the company stated in the response that,

"I think it is interesting to see this holistic view on car development. Incorporating the several pillars of sustainability idea at the engineering level in my view is a worthwhile and very fruitful concept.

"I think it is a quite interesting question and I really want to comment on it from a detailed perspective on the impression of product standardisation. I believe it is an efficient

method which is adopted by the companies for reducing the operational cost and further enhancing the quality of the products and services delivered to the customers. It keeps us aligned with the preferences and expectations of our respected customers and also matches their desire on what they require in a vehicle. For this, we also try our level best to bring something innovative in our every model launched as recently we have developed a cargo sensor system so that the towing can be made safer for the people. So yes, I believe it is significant for the technology-based industries."

It can be observed from the interview responses presented above that there were mixed reviews regarding the importance of product standardisation into the companies as it is aimed towards innovating the products and services within an organisation.

4.2.2. Evaluation of Factors which underlies the Product Standardisation leading to Innovation in Jaguar

In the present situation, the standardisation of the products is considered as the significant part in the innovation and transformation of the business for which a number of companies have opted for. Besides the reduction in the cost of operations, the standardisation of the products and services can lead to innovation which can take into account the preferences of the customers. On the evaluation of the factors which underlies the product standardisation, it has been stated by 11th employee who was the marketing analyst of the company reflected in the interview that,

"If we look into the benefits of product standardisation, it is necessary to make sure that the automotive industry delivers their policy objectives adequately regarding the product standardisation so as to make clear what will be incorporated in the product standardisation of the vehicles. I would also like to add here that, we are able to clearly monitor the demand and supply for our particular model while we incorporate an innovation measure in the model. Our car model RC 5754 was the first car in the world which consists of new grade of

aluminium and contains high level of recyclable material and we were able to do so by the implementation of product standardisation. Therefore, it gives us a competitive edge over the competitors."

In response to this question, the 15th employee of the company who was the automobile engineer of the company stated in the interview that,

"I would like to comment the same thing that undoubtedly product standardisation helps in reducing cost and different operations of the company, yet the major advantage of this thing is it enhances the quality and reliability of the product that eventually make the customer highly loyal towards you. The designers of our company are highly motivated towards merging the traditional designs with the present needs of the customers that actually makes the standardisation unique and interesting. It feels just like the music DJ, mixing the touches of classical songs with the high-beat songs to get a right amount of thrill in the song."

The comment given by the automobile engineer of the company was interesting yet valuable for the research as he described how standardisation processes benefits the company. It was further highlighted by the manager of the company that,

"I am of the opinion that standardisation processes eat a lot of time of the designers and engineers along with the research and development team because the thing which we incorporate in the design is the need of the customer as creativity is the key part which our designers focus on to promote innovation in each model introduced. As a standardisation measure, we are right now working on voice control activation and predictive gestures as we entirely focus on innovating ourselves with the help of innovation. So I must add here that standardisation helps in fostering innovation and creativity for our company."

From the results presented in the interview responses, it can be asserted that most of the respondents were positive towards product standardisation as it eventually leads to innovative and creative measures in the company. The results are consistent with the study of Jiang et al., (2016) which highlighted that standardisation is regarded as the conventional wisdom as it helps and facilitates the organisation rise above the continuum and finds a balance between innovation and standardisation.

4.2.3. Challenges Faced by the Managers of Jaguar while Implementing Product
Standardisation for Promoting Innovation

The product standardisation has certain challenges which are faced by the managers of the company for an effective promotion of innovation. In the automobile industry, the challenges are quite intense as it incorporates social and ethical problems which need to be rectified during the standardisation of the cars. For reflecting on the challenges faced by the managers of the company, the assistant manager stated on it that,

"We face certain issues in the implementation of standardisation on the vehicles and top-most rated issue we face is with the effective implementation of the ICT technologies for bringing transport and mobility in the cars as it provides major advantages to the customers in the future. I would also like to add that our proposed designs are based on the reduction on congestion and carbon emissions in order to make ourselves complied with the societal and environmental responsibilities."

In response the answer given by the assistant management, the senior manager of the company stated in the interview that,

Our challenges are more included towards bringing effective security and safety measures for the customers and make significant contribution to the environment safety and handle the societal pressures. As the part of Jaguar's commitment, we thrive ourselves to constantly improve the efficiency of the cars by creating a wide range of fuel efficient Ingenium engines which also have a feature of saving energy with an intelligent start that can

optimise the energy. We never ran away with the challenges as we face them pragmatically and wisely so that the competitive advantage of the company would stay there forever.

From this response, it was reflected that the main challenge faced by the company is directed towards the environmental and social issues and hence creating a sustainable competitive advantage for the economy of the country. On the challenges faced by Jaguar, one of the employees among the respondents stated in the interview that,

"There are some crucial points where the OEMs perform for influencing congestions in the production of cars. We face congestion issues while standardising the cars as for this we have a got a very intelligent vehicle management system that mainly understands the route the vehicle is going to take and yet the car can automatically do an automatic scheduling and most of the decisions at the time of congestion is made by that device. We are in constant agreement with IBM who is working on these devices where the car can interact with the external environment for managing the urban mobilities. In this manner, we devise strategies constantly to innovate our systems with the help of product standardisation."

The responses collected by the interviewees belonging to Jaguar, Shanghai have given mixed reviews where the managers have reflected that they continuously devise strategies for mitigating the challenges. Moreover, the company is also focused towards the reduction of carbon emissions and congestions caused by the vehicles in order to stay competitive in the automobile industry.

4.2.4. The Role of Product Standardization in Promoting Innovation in the Company

In the contemporary business situation, the innovation has played a significant role in driving economic growth of a country and development within the context of being a developed country. In the light of Bernardo (2014), innovation has been explained as an application of modern ideas from the perspective of new products, procedures, and other factors or the strategy of the firm which is aimed towards creating value for the consumers.

However, the organisations are looking for the ways in which they can transform their operations and enhance the experience of the customers within the industry so that they can benefit different types of standardisation processes and features for facilitating the needs and expectations of the customer. On the role of product standardisation on the promotion of innovation within an organisation, it was stated by one of the employees that,

"I believe that there is a huge importance of standardisation in the context of innovation because it helps the engineers of the company in empowering our engineers to reflect their creativity in the cars by introducing new designs and innovation which can fascinate the customers with an accurate approach of the company. However, for a longer period of time in the automotive design, everything was centred on the driver of the vehicle, we are not all set to introduce driverless cars which were only achievable with our standardisation processes for which our engineers are working day and night to promote innovation in our car models. So yes I can say that standardisation has a direct role in the innovation especially in our company."

In response to this statement, another employee of the company stated in the interview responses upon asking on the role of product standardisation on the innovation,

"Yes I personally feel that there is much sign of the product standardisation with the innovation as If we see from a pure design standpoint, we have to create something which outshines the company and hence enriches the relationship of the company with the consumers. For this, it is not necessary that one should go with the flow; it is necessary that company should think out of the box and be a trend setter on its own rather than going with the flow. So I feel that the standardisation of the product can foster and stimulate innovation in the company."

It has also been stated by another employee of the company that,

"Innovation is the USP of our company as most of the strategies are formulated keeping in mind the fact that our organisation is highly focused towards innovating every model with a new technology or a feature which meets the desires and preference so the customers. Here I think that it is highly important for our company to carry out our task naturally as consumers have strong connections with their car. So I believe that the standardisation and innovation should go hand in hand so that our company can gain a sustainable competitive advantage over the competitors. It is because of the great designs made by our designers and the standardisation processes which help our company in making a strong connection with the consumers. However, in the present marketplace, the standardisation and innovation is our greatest differentiator where everything becomes comparable in terms of quality and technology."

Overall results of the interview have depicted that majority of the interviewees were in the concerned about the challenges related to the product standardisation in the vehicles. Moreover, they also regarded as standardisation of the vehicles highly significant because it can foster innovation in the company and create a sustainable competitive advantage in the automobile industry.

4.3. Discussion

Objective 1: To understand the concept and significance of product standardisation. The first objective of the research is offered by the researcher which is directed towards the understanding the concept and significance of the product standardisation within the context of the automobile industry. The objective was successfully achieved by the researcher by reviewing different theories and concepts related to the standardisation of the products and services within different industries. In the light of Acemoglu, Gancia and Zilibotti (2012), standardisation of the products elucidates that the company can sell their

products and services and standardise it in the companies keeping in mind the needs and expectations of the consumers or the target audience of the organisation.

The significance of product standardisation is also reflected in the study carried out by Gerstlberger, Præst Knudsen, and Stampe (2014) which highlighted that standardisation of the products can be regarded as the uniform depiction of various attributes of the product or service where the constituents used in the standardisation includes manufacturing, quality of the material, product name, packaging, allocation of the product in market either local or international, and pricing of product. Overall, the concept of significance has been highly studied in the light of different authors and practitioners who considered as the vital for stimulation of innovation in the company.

Objective 2: To study the factors affecting product standardisation that leads to innovation

The second objective of the research is presented by the researcher which is directed towards the studying the factors affecting product standardisation that leads to innovation. The objective was efficaciously accomplished by the researcher by reviewing different theories and concepts related to the factors affecting the standardisation of products leading to innovation. On viewing different studies and theories, it was revealed that with the increase in the globalisation, various organisations want to transform and bring innovation into their operations in various directions for sustaining a strong competitive advantage in the industry.

Moreover, there are certain factors which affect the product standardisation in the automobile companies such as the company is able to reduce their cost by standardising the products as it leads to innovative measures in the company. In addition to the above statement, the factors which influence the standardisation of the products are mainly concerned with the fact that the companies are in a better position for monitoring and

evaluating the manufacturing process of the product. However, with the process of monitoring the companies can ensure that the quality of the products which are manufactured by the OEM for the customers against their needs and expectations.

Objective 3: To study the role of product standardization in innovation within the case of Jaguar

The third objective proposed by the researcher was theoretical in nature which is focused towards studying the role of product standardisation in the innovation with the case of Jaguar. The objective was, however, achieved by reviewing theories and interviewing the employee of Jaguar to which it was identified that the product standardisation plays a significant role in the promotion of innovation within the company as the management regard the element of standardisation of products as highly significant because it helps them in sustaining their competitive advantage within the automobile industry in which the company is operating. In addition, it helps the company in reducing cost while fostering innovation at the same time. Moreover, the employees of the company regarded innovation as the crucial factor which contributes significantly to the success of the company.

References

- Acemoglu, D., Gancia, G. and Zilibotti, F., 2012. Competing engines of growth: Innovation and standardization. *Journal of Economic Theory*, *147*(2), pp.570-601.
- Akgün, A.E., Keskin, H. and Ayar, H., 2014. Standardization and adaptation of international marketing mix activities: A case study. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, *150*, pp.609-618.
- Annual Report, 2016. Our blueprint for success, Jaguar Automobile. Retrieved from [http://annualreport2016.jaguarlandrover.com/assets/jaguar-land-rover-annual-report-2016 business-blueprint.pdf].
- Baud-Lavigne, B., Agard, B. and Penz, B., 2012. Mutual impacts of product standardization and supply chain design. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 135(1), pp.50-60.
- Baud-Lavigne, B., Agard, B. and Penz, B., 2012. Mutual impacts of product standardization and supply chain design. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 135(1), pp.50-60
- Bernardo, M., 2014. Integration of management systems as an innovation: a proposal for a new model. J. Clean. Prod. 82, 132–142.
- Blind, K. and Mangelsdorf, A., 2016. Motives to standardize: Empirical evidence from Germany. *Technovation*, 48, pp.13-24.
- Blind, K. and Mangelsdorf, A., 2016. Motives to standardize: Empirical evidence from Germany. *Technovation*, 48, pp.13-24.
- Blumberg, B.F., Cooper, D.R. and Schindler, P.S., 2014. *Business research methods*. McGraw-hill education.
- Braun, V. and Clarke, V., 2013. Using thematic analysis in psychology. *Qualitative research* in psychology, 3(2), pp.77-101.

- Brinkmann, S., 2014. Interview. In *Encyclopedia of Critical Psychology* (pp. 1008-1010). Springer New York.
- Chesbrough, H. and Brunswicker, S., 2014. A fad or a phenomenon?: The adoption of open innovation practices in large firms. *Research-Technology Management*, *57*(2), pp.16-25.
- De Brentani, U., Kleinschmidt, E.J. and Salomo, S., 2010. Success in global new product development: Impact of strategy and the behavioral environment of the firm. *Journal of Product Innovation Management*, 27(2), pp.143-160.
- European Commission, 2016. Better regulations for innovation-driven investment at EU level: Commission Staff Working Document available at http://ec.europa.eu/research/innovation-union/pdf/innovrefit staff working document.pdf#view=fit&pagemode=none.
- European Commission, 2016. Better regulations for innovation-driven investment at EU level: Commission Staff Working Document available at http://ec.europa.eu/research/innovation-union/pdf/innovrefit staff working document.pdf#view=fit&pagemode=none.
- Flick, U., 2015. Introducing research methodology: A beginner's guide to doing a research project. Sage.
- Gerstlberger, W., Præst Knudsen, M. and Stampe, I., 2014. Sustainable development strategies for product innovation and energy efficiency. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 23(2), pp.131-144.
- Hise, R. and Young-Tae, C. (2011), "Are US companies employing standardization or adaptation strategies in their international markets?" Journal of International Business and cultural studies, Vol. 4, pp. 1-29.

- Holloway, I., and Todres, L. 2003. The status of method: flexibility, consistency and coherence. Qualitative Research, 3(3), 345-357.
- Hussain, A. and Khan, S., 2013. International marketing strategy: standardization versus adaptation. *Management and Administrative Sciences Review*, 2(4), pp.353-359.
- Jiang, H., Zhao, S., Li, Z. and Chen, Y., 2016. Interaction between technology standardization and technology development: a coupling effect study. *Information Technology and Management*, 17(3), pp.229-243
- Kafetzopoulos, D., Gotzamani, K., Psomas, E., 2013. Quality systems and competitive performance of food companies. Benchmarking 20 (4), 463–483
- Kampker, A., Maue, A., Deutskens, C. and Forstmann, R., 2014, September. Standardization and innovation: Dissolving the contradiction with modular production architectures.

 In *Electric Drives Production Conference (EDPC), 2014 4th International* (pp. 1-6).IEEE.
- Kampker, A., Maue, A., Deutskens, C. and Forstmann, R., 2014, September. Standardization and innovation: Dissolving the contradiction with modular production architectures.

 In *Electric Drives Production Conference (EDPC)*, 2014 4th International (pp. 1-6).IEEE.
- Kurylko, D.T., 2013. Jaguar Land Rover hires industry vet. Automotive News, 87(6564)
- Liu, S., Perry, P., Moore, C. and Warnaby, G., 2016. The standardization-localization dilemma of brand communications for luxury fashion retailers' internationalization into China. *Journal of Business Research*, 69(1), pp.357-364.
- Mackey, A. and Gass, S.M., 2015. Second language research: Methodology and design.

 Routledge.

- Miranda Silva, G., J. Gomes, P., Filipe Lages, L. and Lopes Pereira, Z., 2014. The role of TQM in strategic product innovation: an empirical assessment. *International journal of operations & production management*, 34(10), pp.1307-1337.
- Mishra, V., Mishra, P. and Rai, G.K., 2010.Process and product standardization for the development of amla bar. *Beverage Food World*, *37*, pp.58-60.
- Mithas, S. and Arora, R., 2015. Lessons from Tata's Corporate Innovation Strategy. *IT Professional*, 17(2), pp.2-6.
- Neuman, W.L. and Robson, K., 2014. Basics of social research. Pearson Canada.
- Paasi, J., Lappalainen, I., Rantala, T. and Pikkarainen, M., 2014. Challenges for product and service providers in open innovation with customers in business-to-business markets. *International Journal of Innovation Management*, 18(02), p.1450012.
- Poturak, M. and Duman, T., 2014. The Role of Marketing Standardization/Adaptation

 Strategies on Managers' Satisfaction with Export Performance: Proposal of a

 Conceptual Framework. *European Journal of Economic Studies*, (4), pp.252-262.
- Prester, J., Bozac, M.G., 2012. Are innovative organizational concepts enough for fostering innovation? Int. J. Innov. Manag.16 (1) 1250005-1–1250005-23.
- Ratnasingam, J., Yoon, C.Y., Ioraş, F., 2013. The effects of ISO 9001 quality management system on innovation and management capacities in the Malaysian furniture sector.

 Bull. Transilv. Univ. Brasov, Series II: For. Wood Indus. Agric. Food Eng. 6 (1), 63–70
- Shin, D.H., Kim, H. and Hwang, J., 2015. Standardization revisited: A critical literature review on standards and innovation. *Computer Standards & Interfaces*, 38, pp.152-157.
- Smith, J.A. ed., 2015. Qualitative psychology: A practical guide to research methods. Sage.

- Tan, Q. and Sousa, C.M., 2013. International marketing standardization. *Management international review*, 53(5), p.711.
- Wang, Z., Zhang, M., Sun, H. and Zhu, G., 2016. Effects of standardization and innovation on mass customization: An empirical investigation. *Technovation*, 48, pp.79-86.
- Xie, Z., Hall, J., McCarthy, I.P., Skitmore, M. and Shen, L., 2016. Standardization efforts:

 The relationship between knowledge dimensions, search processes and innovation outcomes. *Technovation*, 48, pp.69-78.

Appendices

Interview Questions

- Q1. What is the significance of product standardisation at your organisation?
- Q2. To what extent product standardisation is applied in your organisation?
- Q3. In your opinion, what benefits you perceive underlies the standardisation of the products?
- Q4. What are major challenges for product standardization when innovation is promoted in this process?
- Q5. What are major challenges for product standardization when innovation is promoted in this process?
- Q6. In your opinion, does the product standardisation helps in sustaining competitive advantage for your organisation?
- Q7. In your opinion, does the product standardisation have an optimistic future in the automotive industry?
- Q8. Please provide some suggestions on the role of product standardisation in innovation within the automotive industry?